
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 08/05/2019 • Last updated: 10/31/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name NYFACS 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 3 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 08/2010 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2010 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 10 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the New York French American Charter School is to develop bilingual, biliterate global 
citizens who will be the leaders of tomorrow. 
We achieve this in the following ways: 
Allowing students to learn a true appreciation, respect for and understanding of diversity through the 

example of the adults who work with them. 
Teaching students the foundations of respect and responsibility, first for themselves, and then for their 
community. 
Providing students with opportunities for cross cultural enrichment. 
Educating students with a global perspective using critical thinking and resources from other cultures 

and countries. 
Providing students with the language, vocabulary and contexts that will enable them to create open 

dialogues with others. 
Equipping students for the 21st century by means of a rigorous and well rounded biliterate and bilingual 
education. 
Hiring a diverse team of teachers, interns and administrators both from the U.S. and other countries who 

provide a variety of viewpoints and experiences 

2 / 10 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 (No response) 

Variable 2 (No response) 

Variable 3 (No response) 

Variable 4 (No response) 

Variable 5 (No response) 

Variable 6 (No response) 

Variable 7 (No response) 

Variable 8 (No response) 

Variable 9 (No response) 

Variable 10 (No response) 

Need additional space for (No response) 
variables 

3 / 10 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

g1. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 11 (No response) 

Variable 12 (No response) 

Variable 13 (No response) 

Variable 14 (No response) 

Variable 15 (No response) 

Variable 16 (No response) 

Variable 17 (No response) 

Variable 18 (No response) 

Variable 19 (No response) 

Variable 20 (No response) 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

http://www.nyfacs.net/mission 1 

290 

289 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 
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l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

Yes, 2 sites 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be 
Served at Site 
for coming year
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

311 WEST 120 
Site 1 STREET, NEW NYC CSD 3 

YORK, NY 10027 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

School MARC MAURICE Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110602389/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110602389/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

School Site 2 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m2d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 2 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to Yes 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Best
Description) 

1 
Change in Grade
Level Configuration 

2 
Change in Maximum
Approved Enrollment 

3 

4 

5 

More revisions to add? 

Specific Revision
(150 word limit) 

Addition of grade 6 

343 students 

Yes 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

11/01/2017 

11/01/2017 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 

09/05/2018 

09/05/2018 
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n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 

Category (Select Best
Description) 

Specific Revision
(150 word limit) 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name MAMADOU BA 

Position PARENT LIAISON 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 
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Date (No response) 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 10/19/2019 

NEW YORK FRENCH-AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	 	
	

	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 10/19/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

Academ 
ic Goal 
2 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

NYS ELA exam 
proficiency rates 
meet or 
exceed comparable
community school
district, NY City, and
NY State 

NYS Math exam 
proficiency rates 
meet or 
exceed comparable
CSD, NY City,
and NY State 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

NYS Assessment in 
ELA 

Met 
NYFACS 50% 
proficient
NYC 47.4% 
NYS 45.4% 
District 5 (majority of
student reside) 31% 

NYS Assessment in 
Math 

Met 
NYFACS proficient
49.7% 
NYC 45.6% 
NYS 46.7% 
District 5 (majority of
student reside)
25.3% 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Met 

Met 

Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

NYS Science exam NYS 4th Grade proficiency rates Academ Assessment in meet or Other scores not ic Goal Science Met exceed comparable available 
CSD, NY City, 

1 / 8 
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4 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

Academ 
ic Goal 
7 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

and NY State 

NYS ELA exam 
proficiency rates
increase 

NYS Math exam 
proficiency rates
increase 

90% Proficient, 

NYS Assessment in 
ELA 

No Change
Proficiency in 2018 
50% 
Proficiency in 2019 
50% 

NYS Assessment in 
Math 

Met 
Proficiency in 2018 
42.4% 
Proficiency in 2019 
49.7% 

Not Met 

Met 

Instituted iReady
diagnostic
assessments; small 
group instruction
based on results; 
hired reading teacher
to provide additional
instruction to low 
performing students;
provide instructional
coaching to review
and act upon student
achievement data 

2. Do have more academic goals (No response) 
to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 

2 / 8 



	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	
	
	 	

	

	
	
	
	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	
	
	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	
	
	 	
	
	 	

	

	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	
	
	 	
	

	 	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	

Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 
Toward Attainment of Take 
Goal 

NYFACS 2018 19 
Progress Toward
Attainment of 
Academic Goals 
100% 

NYS ELA proficiency
rates for English NYS Assessment in 

Academ Language Learners ELA 
ic Goal (ELLs) meet or
11 exceed 

District, City and Met 
State rates NYFACS 17% 

proficient
NYC 9.3% proficient
District 5 6% 
proficient
NYS 8.7% proficient 

NYS Assessment in 
Math NYS Math proficiency

rates for English Met Academ Language Learners NYFACS 25% ic Goal (ELLs) meet or proficient12 exceed NYC 18.9% proficientDistrict, City and District 5 11% State rates proficient
NYS 17% proficient 

Met 

Met 

NYS ELA exam 
proficiency rates for Not Met 
Students NYFACS 9% proficientAcadem with Disabilities NYS Assessment in NYC 16.1% proficientic Goal Not Met (SWD) meet or ELA District 5 14% 13 exceed proficient
District, City and NYS 13.9 % proficient 
State rates 

NYS Assessment in 
Math 

NYS Math exam 
proficiency rates for

Academ Students Met 
ic Goal with Disabilities NYFACS 27% 

(SWD) meet or proficient
exceed NYC 17.5% proficient
City and State rates District 5 11% 

proficient
NYS 16.2% proficient 

Met 

3 / 8 
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15 

NYS Assessment in 
NYS ELA exam ELA 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
16 

proficiency rates for
students 
eligible for Free and
Reduced Price Lunch 
meet or exceed 
District, City, and
State rates 

NYS Math exam 
proficiency rates for
students 
eligible for Free and
Reduced Price Lunch 
meet or exceed 
Citywide and State 
rates 

Met 
NYFACS 45% 
proficient
District 5 28% 
proficient
NYS 36% proficient
NYC 40.5% proficient 

NYS Assessment in 
Math 

Met 
NYFACS 47% 
proficient
District 5 23% 
proficient
NYS 37% proficient
NYC 39.1% proficient 

Met 

Met 

Academ 
ic Goal 
17 

Academ 
ic Goal 
18 

Academ 
ic Goal 
19 

Academ 
ic Goal 
20 

3. Do have more academic goals (No response) 
to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met, Partially If Not Met, Describe 
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Met, or Not Met Efforts School Will 

Toward Attainment of Take 
Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 

4 / 8 

21 



	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Academ 
ic Goal 
22 

Academ 
ic Goal 
23 

Academ 
ic Goal 
24 

Academ 
ic Goal 
25 

Academ 
ic Goal 
26 

Academ 
ic Goal 
27 

Academ 
ic Goal 
28 

Academ 
ic Goal 
29 

Academ 
ic Goal 
30 

Academ 
ic Goal 
31 

Academ 
ic Goal 
32 

Academ 
ic Goal 
33 

Academ 
ic Goal 
34 

Academ 
ic Goal 
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35 

Academ 
ic Goal 
36 

Academ 
ic Goal 
37 

Academ 
ic Goal 
38 

Academ 
ic Goal 
39 

Academ 
ic Goal 
40 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Org
Goal 1 

Org
Goal 2 

Org
Goal 3 

Org
Goal 4 

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

6 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational (No response) 
goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

7 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	

	

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

FY8 Cash on Hand 
426K Financia 2 Months of Cash Audited Financial Met l Goal 1 Reserve on hand Report FY19 Cash on Hand 
$1m 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals (No response) 
to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

Financia 
l Goal 6 

Financia 
l Goal 7 

Financia 
l Goal 8 

Financia 
l Goal 9 

Financia 
l Goal 

Thank you. 

8 / 8 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 08/05/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

NEW YORK FRENCH-AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 5106747 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 287 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 177934 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

3132137 

517159 

3649196 

12715 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of 
New York French American Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New York French American Charter School 
(“the School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. 



 

       
    

 
 

 
                

               
               

         
 

 
 

      
       

    
 

   
 

         
               

               
               

   
 

    
 

     
        

       
           

        
     

     
          

 
 
 
 

  
   

 
     

 
 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of New York French American Charter School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Foundation adopted Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of 
Not-for-Profit Entities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the School’s 2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 30, 2018. In our 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June
30, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 
2019 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 28, 2019 
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NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AT JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals at June 30, 2018) 

6/30/19 6/30/18 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Government grants receivable 
Accounts receivable - New York City
  Department of Education (Note 3) 
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 
Restricted cash (Note 4) 
Security deposit 
Fixed assets, net (Note 5) 

$1,007,458 
135,217 

0 
54,658 
70,004 
60,263 

319,324 

$427,217 
247,475 

12,514 
65,747 
70,004 
60,263 

440,940 

Total assets $1,646,924 $1,324,160 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Advance payable - New York City
  Department of Education (Note 3) 
Deferred grant revenue 
Deferred rent 

$694,942 

2,599 
27,136 
46,384 

$515,769 

0 
7,736 

92,765 
Total liabilities 771,061 616,270 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 859,981 688,760 
With donor restrictions (Note 6) 15,882 19,130 

Total net assets 875,863 707,890 

Total liabilities and net assets $1,646,924 $1,324,160 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

Public support and revenue: 
Public school district (Note 3): 

Revenue - resident student enrollment - NYC 
Revenue - students with special
  education services - NYC 

Subtotal  public school district 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

$4,392,711 

264,216 
4,656,927 

With Donor 
Restrictions 

0 

Total 
6/30/19 

$4,392,711 

264,216 
4,656,927 

Total 
6/30/18 

$4,018,706 

218,105 
4,236,811 

Revenue - nonresident student enrollment 
Total public school district 

15,607 
4,672,534 0 

15,607 
4,672,534 

15,023 
4,251,834 

Government grants 
Contributions and other revenue 
Net assets released from restriction (Note 6) 

620,020 
9,339 
3,248 (3,248) 

620,020 
9,339 

0 

578,498 
21,548 

0 

Total public support and revenue 5,305,141 (3,248) 5,301,893 4,851,880 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Regular education 
Special education 

Total program services 

3,715,692 
869,008 

4,584,700 0 

3,715,692 
869,008 

4,584,700 

3,158,150 
883,798 

4,041,948 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total supporting services 

537,608 
11,612 

549,220 0 

537,608 
11,612 

549,220 

569,614 
41,720 

611,334 

Total expenses 5,133,920 0 5,133,920 4,653,282 

Change in net assets 171,221 (3,248) 167,973 198,598 

Net assets - beginning of year 688,760 19,130 707,890 509,292 

Net assets - end of year $859,981 $15,882 $875,863 $707,890 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

Program Services 
Total 

Regular Special Program 
Education Education Services 

Supporting Services 
Management Total 

and Supporting 
General Fundraising Services 

Total 
Expenses 
6/30/19 

Total 
Expenses 
6/30/18 

Salaries 
Fringe benefits and
  payroll taxes 
Retirement 

$1,820,866 

435,191 
35,352 

$450,952 

107,778 
8,755 

$2,271,818 

542,969 
44,107 

$233,772 

55,871 
4,539 

$4,952 

1,185 
96 

$238,724 

57,056 
4,635 

$2,510,542 

600,025 
48,742 

$2,357,811 

604,174 
48,176 

Total personnel costs 2,291,409 567,485 2,858,894 294,182 6,233 300,415 3,159,309 3,010,161 

Legal fees 
Professional fees - other 
Recruitment 
Supplies and materials 
Office expenses 
Student services 
Travel and conferences 
Insurance 
Technology 
Equipment and furniture 
Repairs and maintenance 
Building rent 
Utilites 
Depreciation 
Other 

304,305 
12,673 
60,236 
32,161 
60,777 

2,161 
31,389 
52,545 

7,570 
201,738 
394,584 
120,327 
124,629 

19,188 

43,003 
3,139 
6,539 
6,999 
6,597 

535 
7,774 

13,014 
822 

49,962 
97,722 
29,800 
30,865 

4,752 

0 
347,308 

15,812 
66,775 
39,160 
67,374 

2,696 
39,163 
65,559 

8,392 
251,700 
492,306 
150,127 
155,494 

23,940 

52,004 
40,740 

1,627 

3,236 

278 
4,030 
6,745 
1,559 

25,902 
50,659 
15,449 
16,000 
25,197 

195 
34 

69 
2,507 

6 
85 

143 

548 
1,073 

327 
340 

52 

52,004 
40,935 

1,661 
0 

3,305 
2,507 

284 
4,115 
6,888 
1,559 

26,450 
51,732 
15,776 
16,340 
25,249 

52,004 
388,243 

17,473 
66,775 
42,465 
69,881 

2,980 
43,278 
72,447 

9,951 
278,150 
544,038 
165,903 
171,834 

49,189 

39,437 
208,889 

10,537 
81,583 
41,080 
92,254 

2,324 
32,985 
71,162 
12,324 

207,342 
485,084 
157,163 
174,061 

26,896 

Total other than
  personnel costs 1,424,283 301,523 1,725,806 243,426 5,379 248,805 1,974,611 1,643,121 

Total expenses $3,715,692 $869,008 $4,584,700 $537,608 $11,612 $549,220 $5,133,920 $4,653,282 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

6/30/19 6/30/18 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
 to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Government grants receivable 
Accounts receivable - New York City Department of Education 
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Advance payable - New York City Department of Education 
Deferred grant revenue
Deferred rent 

Total adjustments 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

$167,973 

171,834 

112,258 
12,514 
11,089 

179,173 
2,599 

19,400 
(46,381) 
462,486 
630,459 

$198,598 

174,061 

6,235 
(12,514) 
(48,579) 
54,296 

(16,381) 
7,736 

(27,055) 
137,799 
336,397 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used for investing activities 
(50,218) 
(50,218) 

(44,883) 
(44,883) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 580,241 291,514 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 427,217 135,703 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $1,007,458 $427,217 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest and taxes paid $0 $0 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 1 - Organization and Nature of Activities 

New York French American Charter School (“the School”), located in Manhattan, New York, 
is a not-for-profit education corporation chartered by the University of the State of New
York. The School provides a full range of educational services appropriate for pre-
kindergarten through seventh grade. The School completed the 2018-2019 fiscal year, with 
an average enrollment of approximately 287 students. The School is a publicly funded,
privately managed school, which is independent of the New York City Department of
Education (“NYCDOE”). 

The School has been operating under a charter granted by the University of the State of
New York, Education Department that expires on June 30, 2022. 

The School has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from Federal
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been made. The School has not been designated as a private 
foundation. 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting which
is the process of recognizing revenue and expenses when earned or incurred rather
than received or paid. 

Effective July 1, 2018, the School adopted the requirements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board’s Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14 – Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU 2016-
14). This standard addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset
classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources,
and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return between not-for-profit entities. A key change required by ASU 2016-
14 is the net asset classes used in these financial statements. Amounts previously
reported as unrestricted net assets are now reported as net assets without donor
restrictions and amounts previously reported as temporarily restricted net assets and
permanently restricted net assets are now reported as net assets with donor
restrictions. A footnote on liquidity has also been added (Note 11). The changes 
required by the update have been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. 
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b. Basis of Presentation 
The School reports information regarding their financial position and activities 
according to the following classes of net assets: 

 Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – represent those resources for which
there are no restrictions by donors as to their use. 

 Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – represent those resources, the uses of
which have been restricted by donors to specific purposes or the passage of
time and/or must remain intact, in perpetuity. The release from restrictions 
results from the satisfaction of the restricted purposes specified by the donor. 

c. Revenue Recognition
Public school district revenue is recognized based on rates established by the School’s
funding source and the amount realizable on the accrual basis in the period during
which services are provided. 

All government grants have been recognized as income when earned, either based on
performance of certain milestones or by incurring expenses that can be reimbursed
under the terms of the grant agreement. The difference between cash received and 
revenue recognized is reflected as government grants receivable or refundable 
advances. 

Contributions are recognized at the earlier of when cash is received or at the time a
pledge becomes unconditional in nature. Contributions are recorded in the net asset 
classes referred to above depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-
imposed restriction. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends, or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. If donor restricted 
contributions are satisfied in the same period they were received, they are classified as
without donor restrictions. 

Contributions expected to be received within one year are recorded at net realizable 
value. Long-term pledges are recorded at fair value, using risk-adjusted present value
techniques. Conditional contributions are recognized as income when the conditions
have been substantially met. 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The School considers all liquid instruments with an initial maturity of three months or 
less to be cash and cash equivalents. 

e. Concentration of Credit Risk 
Financial instruments, which potentially subject the School to concentration of credit
risk, consist of cash and money market accounts, which have been placed with a
financial institution that management deems to be creditworthy. At times, and at year 
end, balances may exceed federally insured limits. A significant portion of the funds is
not insured by the FDIC or related entity; however, the School has not experienced any
losses from these accounts. 
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f. Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables 
Management has not established a reserve for bad debt because they deem all
receivables to be fully collected based on specific identification and analysis. Write-offs 
will be recorded as an expense in the year they are deemed to be uncollectible. 

g. Fixed Assets and Capitalization Policy
Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost or at fair value on 
the date of the gift, if donated. The School capitalizes fixed assets in excess of pre-
defined amounts that have a useful life of more than one year. Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the respective 
assets as follows: 

Office equipment – 5 years 
Computer equipment – 3 years
Furniture and fixtures – 7 years
Leasehold improvements – Life of lease 

h. Deferred Rent 
Rent expense is recorded on the straight-line basis over the life  of the lease. Rent  
expense recognized in excess of cash payments, due to free rent received at the
beginning of the lease, is reflected as deferred rent. As future payments exceed the
annual expense recognized, deferred rent will be reduced to zero by the end of the lease 
term. 

i. Donated Services 
Donated services are recognized in circumstances where those services create or
enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals
possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased, if not provided in-
kind. 

Board members and other individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of
tasks that assist the School. These services do not meet the criteria outlined above and 
have not been recorded in the financial statements. 

j. Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. 
Allocations are determined by management on an equitable basis. 
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The expenses that are allocated include the following: 

Expense 
Salaries 
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Professional fees - other 
Recruitment 
Supplies and materials 
Office expenses 
Student services 
Travel and conferences 
Insurance 
Technology 
Equipment and furniture 
Repairs and maintenance 
Building rent 
Utilities 
Depreciation 
Other 

Method of Allocation 
Time and effort 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation, Student Full-Time Equivalent (“FTE”) 
Salary Allocation 
Student FTE 
Salary Allocation, Student FTE 
Student FTE 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation 
Student FTE 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation 
Salary Allocation 

All other expenses have been charged directly to the applicable program or supporting 
services. 

k. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

l. Summarized Comparative Information
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative 
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information was derived. 

m. Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
The School does not believe its financial statements include any material, uncertain tax
positions. Tax returns for periods ending June 30, 2016 and later are subject to 
examination by applicable taxing authorities. 

n. New Accounting Pronouncement
On June 21, 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 
2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received 
and Contributions Made. The ASU which becomes effective for the June 30, 2020 year, 
provides guidance on whether a receipt from a third-party resource provider should be
accounted for as a contribution (nonreciprocal transaction) within the scope of Topic
958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as an exchange (reciprocal) transaction. 
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In addition, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The 
ASU, which becomes effective for the June 30, 2020 year, focuses on a principle-based 
model. It highlights the identification of performance obligations of the contract,
determining the price and allocating that price to the performance obligation so that
revenue is recognized as each performance obligation is satisfied. 

Lastly, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The ASU, which becomes effective for the 
June 30, 2021 year, requires the full obligation of long-term leases to be recorded as a 
liability with a corresponding “right to use asset” on the statement of financial position. 

Management is in the process of evaluating the impact these standards will have on
future financial statements. 

o. Subsequent Events 
Management has evaluated for potential recognition and disclosure events subsequent 
to the date of the statement of financial position through October 28, 2019, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred subsequent
to the statement of financial position date, through our evaluation date that would
require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable/(Advance Payable) – New York City Department of Education 

6/30/19 6/30/18 
Beginning receivable/ (advance payable) $12,514 ($16,381) 
Payments recovered 0 16,381 
Funding based on allowable FTEs 4,656,927 4,236,811 
Advances received (4,672,040) (4,224,297)
Ending (advance payable)/ receivable ($2,599) $12,514 

Note 4 - Restricted Cash 

An escrow account has been established to meet the requirement of NYCDOE. The purpose 
of this account is to ensure sufficient funds are available for an orderly dissolution or
transition process in the event of termination of the charter or school closure. 

Note 5 - Fixed Assets 

At year end, fixed assets consist of the following: 

6/30/19 6/30/18 
Leasehold improvements $946,502 $926,731 
Furniture and equipment 269,364 238,917 

1,215,866 1,165,648 
Less: accumulated depreciation (896,542) (724,708)
Fixed assets, net $319,324 $440,940 
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Note 6 - Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

The activity of net assets with donor restrictions is as follows: 

June 30, 2019 

Beginning Released Ending 
Balance from Balance 
7/1/18 Contributions Restrictions 6/30/19 

Purchase of smartboards $9,868 $0 $0 $9,868 
School leadership 2,700 0 (2,700) 0 
Music 3,126 0 0 3,126 
Italian Language Tutoring 2,888 0 0 2,888 
Gardening 548 0 (548) 0 
Total $19,130 $0 ($3,248) $15,882 

June 30, 2018 
Beginning Released Ending 

Balance from Balance 
7/1/17 Contributions Restrictions 6/30/18 

Purchase of smartboards $9,868 $0 $0 $9,868 
School leadership 2,700 0 0 2,700 
Music 3,126 0 0 3,126 
Italian Language Tutoring 0 2,888 0 2,888 
Gardening 548 0 0 548 
Total $16,242 $2,888 $0 $19,130 

Note 7 - Significant Concentrations 

The School is dependent upon grants from NYDOE to carry out its operations. 
Approximately 88% and 87% of the School’s total support and revenue was from NYCDOE 
for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Note 8 - Line of Credit 

The School has a $50,000 revolving line of credit with a financial institution. At June 30, 
2019 and 2018, the entire line was available. 

Note 9 - Retirement Plan 

The School sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan. Employees that were employed on
January 1, 2011 or who have completed at least 1,000 hours of work and are employed on 
the last day of the plan year are eligible to participate. Eligible employees may designate a
percentage of their salaries, subject to regulatory limits, to be contributed to the plan on a 
pre-tax basis. The plan provides for discretionary employer matching contributions on an
annual basis for eligible employees. In September 2013, the School reached an agreement
with the United Federation of Teachers (“UFT”), and agreed to match up to 4% of eligible
employees’ salaries to the 401(k), effective November 1, 2013, and up to 5% effective 
September 1, 2014. Employer contributions were $48,742 and $48,176 for the years ended 
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 
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Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies 

a. Government contracts are subject to audit by the grantor. Management does not 
anticipate any material disallowances to result from those audits and has not
established any reserves. Any disallowances will be expensed when a liability becomes 
probable of requiring a payout. 

b. Under the agreement referred to earlier with UFT, the School recognizes UFT as the
exclusive collective bargaining representative of the school faculty. Although the 
agreement expired September 30, 2018, the School entered into a new agreement with 
UFT in February 2019 effective for the period July 1, 2018 through August 2022. 
Approximately 80% and 79% of employees were subject to the collective bargaining
agreement for the year ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively. 

c. The School has an operating lease for classroom space and administrative offices that 
expires in June 2020, with an option to extend the lease for an additional five years. 
Additionally, in August 2018, the School entered into an agreement with the Police 
Athletic League, Inc. to use Harlem Center from August 29, 2018 through June 29, 2019 
for $55,000. Total rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 is 
$544,038 and $485,084, respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Year ending: June 30, 2020 $531,465 

Note 11 - Availability and Liquidity 

The School maintains cash on hand to be available for its general expenditures, liabilities,
and other obligations for on-going operations. As part of its liquidity management plan, the 
School operates its programs within a board approved budget and relies on earned income
and contributions to fund its operations and program activities. 

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,007,458 
Government grants receivable 135,217 

Total financial assets $1,142,675 

Less amounts not available for general expenditures –
donor-imposed restrictions (15,882) 

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for 
general expenditures within one year $1,126,793 

As of June 30, 2019, there are no internal or external limits imposed on the School’s 
financial assets. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees of 
New York French American Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New York French
American Charter School (“the School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June
30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 28, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in  internal control, such  that there is  a  reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 28, 2019 

15 



 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

    
 

NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Current Year: 

None 

Prior Year: 

2018-001 – This condition has been resolved 
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Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 10/31/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119039111/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading 

the Management Letter. 
(No response) 

2. Form 990 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading 

the Form 990. 
Extension Filed 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A 

the Federal Single Audit. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A 

the procedure report. 
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5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119039111/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119039111/JDKdnGTC4H/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Corrective Action Plan. 
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Communication with Those Charged with Governance 

To the Board of Trustees of 
The New York French American Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of The New York French American Charter School (“the
School”) for the year ended June 30, 2019 and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2019.
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our
audit. 

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
As stated in our engagement letter dated June 24, 2019, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk
that material errors, fraud, or other illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 

Planned Scope of Audit
We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you in our engagement
letter and subsequent conversations during the planning phase. 

Significant Accounting Policies
Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. For 2019, the Organization adopted ASU 
2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The effects of this are 
summarized in Note 2, to the financial statements, along with other significant policies. Other than
this, no new accounting policies were adopted during the year under audit. 

We did not note any other transactions entered into by the Organization during the year that were
both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform
you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 



 

 
 

 
 

  
  

   
   

 
   

 
     
   
    

 
  

   
   

 
 

    
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
  

   
 

 
 
 
 

   
  

 
 
  

Accounting Estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

The most sensitive estimates used in preparing the financial statements were as follows: 

• Estimate for collectability of grants receivable 
• Fixed asset depreciation methods and useful lives 
• The allocation of expenses into program, management and fundraising categories 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimate in determining
that it was reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the 
financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear. 

Significant Audit Adjustments
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed
correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except
through our auditing procedures. There were no adjustments of this kind. 

Management agreed with all proposed adjustments. These adjustments have been included as part
of the audited financial statements presented. There are no known adjustments that have not been
recorded. 

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are 
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the
relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
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Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the auditors. There were no specific
matters of this nature discussed prior to our retention. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
There were no significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit. 

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter. 

Industry Updates 

We would like to update you on several newly issued standards and provide an overview of other
matters that impact the nonprofit sector. To summarize: 

Accounting Updates 

As you probably know by now, the FASB new accounting standard, ASU 2016-14, Presentation 
of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities is now effective 

The new ASU impacts substantially all not-for-profits as well as donors, grantor, creditors, and others
that use their financial statements. That includes charities, foundations, private colleges and
universities, nongovernmental health care providers, cultural institutions, religious organizations,
and trade associations, among others. The major changes to financial reporting of not-for-profit 
organizations can be summarized as follows: 

• Net assets are streamlined into two categories: net assets that contain donor restrictions and
net assets that do not contain donor restrictions. This will have a major impact on
organizations with endowments as the financial statements will no longer have a 
permanently restricted class of net assets. There will also be a change to how underwater
endowments will be reported, including enhanced disclosures. 

• The new regulations retain current requirements to provide information about the nature
and amounts of different types of donor-imposed restrictions, highlighting how those
restrictions affect the use of resources, including liquidity. 

• The "placed in service" option for releasing donor restrictions is removed on capital projects. 

• Enhanced disclosures are required about how an organization defines their measure of
operations if used on their statement of activities. (See below for additional matters on this 
topic that will be in the second work stream.) 

• The new standards include some specific requirements directed at improving a financial
statement user’s ability to assess a not-for-profit’s available financial resources and its 
management of liquidity and liquidity risk. Specifically, qualitative information that 
communicates how a not-for-profit manages its liquid available resources to meet cash needs
for general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date will be required. In
addition, quantitative information that communicates the availability of a not-for-profit’s 
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financial assets at the balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general expenditures within
one year of the balance sheet date will be required. Factors to be considered will include
external limits imposed by donors, grantors, laws and contracts with others as well as
internal limits imposed by governing board decisions. 

• All not-for-profits are now required to provide expenses by nature and function. This could
be on the face of the statement of activities, as a separate statement or in the notes. 

• Allowing the direct method of reporting on the statement of cash flows but not making it a
mandatory requirement. The reconciliation of change in net assets to change in cash flows
for the period will be eliminated if the direct method of reporting is elected to encourage
entities to consider changing to the direct method. 

We have worked with your staff to help implement this important new standard. 

FASB New Accounting Standard – Accounting Standards Update No. 2018-08
On June 21, 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards 
Update (“ASU”) No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made. The ASU provides guidance on whether a receipt from a third-party
resource provider falls under the contributions standard or whether it is an exchange transaction. 

When a resource provider does not receive commensurate value, they are required to follow the
contribution guidance. This standard, for the first time, provides information about how to make this
evaluation. The ASU also provides a framework for determining whether a contribution is conditional 
or unconditional and for distinguishing a donor-imposed condition from a donor-imposed 
restriction. This is important because it impacts when revenue will be recognized. 

Specifically, the ASU explains how a not-for-profit entity determines whether a resource provider is
participating in an exchange transaction. Basically, the not-for-profit should evaluate whether the
resource provider is receiving value in return for the resources transferred based on the following
criteria: 

• A resource provider (including a private foundation, a government agency, or other) is 
not synonymous with the general public. The indirect benefit received by the public as a
result of the assets transferred is not equivalent to commensurate value received by the
resource provider. 

• Execution of a resource provider’s mission or the positive sentiment from acting as a
donor would not constitute commensurate value received by a resource provider for
purposes of determining whether a transfer of assets is a contribution or an exchange. 

This evaluation will have the biggest impact on government grants for those entities that have such
transactions. Under this new guidance, most government grants will likely be evaluated as a
contribution rather than an exchange transaction. However, the revenue recognition may not change
in many cases as the contribution is likely to be considered conditional, which has the same
recognition principles as does an exchange transaction. 

The factors to determine whether a contribution is conditional is based on whether the agreement
includes a barrier that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets transferred or a right 
of release of a promisor’s obligation to transfer assets. A probability assessment about whether the 
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recipient is likely to meet a stipulation is not a factor when determining whether the agreement
contains a barrier. In addition, a contribution containing stipulations that are not clearly 
unconditional shall be presumed to be conditional. 

The ASU modifies the simultaneous release option, currently in GAAP, which allows a not-for-profit 
organization to recognize a restricted contribution directly in net assets without donor restrictions
if the restriction is met in the same period that the revenue is recognized. This option may now be
elected for all restricted contributions that were initially classified as conditional without having to
elect it for all other restricted contributions and investment returns. 

A not-for-profit entity that has not issued, or is not a conduit bond obligor for, securities that are
traded, listed, or quoted on an exchange or an over-the-counter market would apply the new
standard to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 (a calendar year
organization will apply for their December 31, 2019 financial statements and a fiscal year entity will
apply during their fiscal year that ends in 2020). 

Early adoption is permitted. 

The ASU should be applied on a modified prospective basis where there is no cumulative effect
adjustment to opening net assets and no restatement of prior period results. 

Retrospective application is also permitted. 

FASB New Accounting Standard – Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02
On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued an ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. Under this standard, all leases, 
including operating leases, with terms of more than twelve months will be required to be reflected
as assets and liabilities on the statement of financial position. The asset will be for the rights to use
the property, equipment or space and the liability will be for the total obligations created by that
lease. 

For most not-for-profit entities, this ASU will be effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2019, which for practical purposes will be years ending December 31, 2020 and fiscal year entities
that end in 2021. During the time before implementation is required, it is important for you to
determine how this change will impact your organization. Important financial ratios and measures
will change, and that is especially relevant to organizations that have loans with debt covenants. 

FASB New Accounting Standard – Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09
In May 2014, FASB issued an ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This 
eliminates the majority of industry specific regulations and focuses more on a principles-based
model. This standard applies to exchange transactions that many nonprofits currently have such as
tuition, membership dues, licenses and royalties. This standard clearly excludes contributions. 

The five-step revenue model highlights the identification of performance obligations of the contract,
determining the price and allocating that price to the performance obligation so that revenue is
recognized as each performance obligation is satisfied. For nonprofit organizations that do not have
public debt, this standard is applicable for calendar 2019 entities or those with a fiscal year that ends
during 2020. 
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IRS Updates 

Tax Cuts and Jobs Act – Tax Reform Bill 
On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed into law H.R. 1, known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act,
commonly referred to as the Tax Reform Bill. The bill has many aspects which impact non-profit 
organizations: 

• Fringe benefit expenses: non-profit organizations are now potentially subject to a new
unrelated business income tax of 21% if they offer certain qualified transportation fringe
benefits such as parking and public transit benefits, effective January 1, 2018. This currently
may apply to both employers who pay for these benefits or are withholding the cost of these
benefits from the employee’s salary (with the employee receiving the benefits on a pre-tax
basis). Thus, qualified transportation fringe benefits, such as TransitCheck (which is
required by NYC Law to be offered by employers with 20 or more full-time, non-union
employees), could subject non-profit organizations to the new tax.  Such organizations would 
then be required to file a 990-T, Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return. 

The New York State Assembly and Senate passed a bill that decouples the state tax code from the
federal tax code in regard to this area.  Governor Cuomo signed the bill into law in late December
2018, thus, organizations that are required to pay the federal tax would not be subject to the state’s
9% tax.  

Additionally, in June 2018, a bill was introduced in the U.S. House of Representatives which would
completely repeal the unrelated business income tax on these fringe benefits. 

• Excise taxes on executive compensation: the bill puts in to place a 21% excise tax on executive
compensation paid by a non-profit organization in excess of $1,000,000. 

• Unrelated business income tax: the bill requires organizations that have more than one
unrelated trade or business to compute their unrelated business taxable income for each 
individual trade or business. Thus, losses from one business may no longer be used to offset
income from another line of business. 

Furthermore, the bill made two changes to individual taxpayer filings that stand to have an impact 
on charitable giving. First, the bill increases the adjusted gross income limitation on cash 
contributions from 50% to 60%.  Second, the bill doubles the standard deduction, beginning in 2018
through 2025, which will have the impact of reducing the number of taxpayers who itemize their
deductions and thus reducing the number of taxpayers for whom the charitable deduction will be
utilized. 

Lastly, of note there are some items that were included in previous versions of the bill that ultimately
did not get included in the final bill: 

• The “Johnson Amendment”: the bill ultimately did not modify or repeal the prohibition of
501(c)3 organizations from participating in political campaigns. 

• Royalties income: the final bill did not include a provision to impose unrelated business
income taxes on royalties received from licensing an organization’s name or logo. 
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• Private foundations: ultimately, the bill did not revise the current excise tax structure on net
investment income. 

IRS Online Tools 
The IRS introduced a new online tool designed to provide faster, easier access to publicly available
information about exempt organizations. The new Tax Exempt Organizations Search (“TEOS”) 
provides an update to EO Select Check.  Among the enhancements, the new TEOS tool includes images 
of newly-filed Form 990’s and is mobile-device friendly. 

IRS Issues Revenue Procedure 2018-32 
The IRS issued Revenue Procedure 2018-32 in order to provide more easily accessible guidance to
grantors and contributors to tax-exempt organizations on deductibility and reliance issues.  The 
procedure sets forth the extent to which grantors and contributors may rely on the listing of an
organization in the IRS’s databases of organizations eligible to receive tax-deductible contributions. 

Government Auditing Updates 

OMB issues memorandum M-18-18 
On June 20, 2018, OMB issued memorandum M-18-18 titled, Implementing Statutory Changes to the 
Micro-Purchase and Simplified Acquisition Thresholds for Financial Assistance. The memorandum 
states that increases to the micro-purchase threshold will be $10,000 and the simplified acquisition
threshold will be $250,000 effective upon issuance of this memo. 

New Yellow Book Issued 
In July 2018, the Government Accountability Office released the 2018 revision of Government 
Auditing Standards (often referred to as The Yellow Book or GAGAS). The areas with significant
changes from the previous (2011) edition of The Yellow Book include: 

• A new format and organization, 
• Independence, 
• CPE requirements, 
• Peer review, 
• Internal control, 
• Waste and abuse, and 
• Reviews of financial statements. 

The most significant changes in this edition of the Yellow Book have to do with non audit services in
relation to independence requirements. 

The 2018 revision supersedes the 2011 Yellow Book, the 2005 Government Auditing Standards: 
Guidance on GAGAS Requirements for Continuing Professional Education and the 2014 Government 
Auditing Standards: Guidance for Understanding the New Peer Review Ratings. 

The 2018 Yellow Book is effective for financial audits, attestation engagements and reviews of
financial statements for periods ending on or after June 30, 2020. It is effective for performance
audits beginning on or after July 1, 2019. Early implementation is not permitted. 
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Proposed Changes to Data Collection Form
The Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) has issued proposed revisions to the data collection form
(DCF) in a recent Federal Register notice. This proposal will not impact 2018 singe audits but if the
revisions are enacted, would impact singe audits for 2019, 2020 and 2021. The following is a
summary of those changes: 

• The audit finding information currently required to be included in the form would be
expanded to include the actual text of the audit finding. 

• Auditors would be asked to indicate whether there was communication to the auditee in a 
written document relating to any issues that were not an audit finding but warranted the
attention with those charged with governance. 

• Auditees would be required to include the text of their corrective action plans. 
• Auditees would also be required to include the text of the notes to the schedule of

expenditures of federal award. 

In addition, there will be a mechanism for entities to voluntarily self-report that they did not meet
the threshold to require a single audit and this information would be posted on the FAC web site. 

Independence Issues
Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC is not aware of any relationships that our firm, or any employees
thereof, has with The New York French American Charter School or any of its board members that,
in our professional judgment may impair our independence. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees, and management of The New 
York French American Charter School and should not be used for any other purpose. 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 28, 2019 
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EXHIBIT 2
New York French American Charter School 

311 West 120th Street 
Marc Maurice, Principal New York, NY 10027 
Mamadou Ba, Parent Liaison 212-666-4134 

October 28th,2019 

Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC
307 Fifth Avenue, 15th Floor 
New York, NY  10016 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the New
York French American Charter School, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,
2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether
the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 28th, 2019, the following representations 
made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated
June 24, 2019, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, in accordance with US GAAP. 

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP. 

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud. 

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable. This specifically includes the methodology for the statement of functional 
expenses. 
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Octobe  28th,2019 

Schall  Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC 

307 Fifth Avenue, 15th Floor 

New York, NY 10116 

EXHIBIT 2

Charter School Business Management, Inc. (“CSBM”) is providing this letter in connection with your 

audit of the statement of financial position of the New York French American Charter School (the 

“School”) as of June 30, 2019 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash 

flows for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial 

statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, changes in net assets, and 

cash flows of The New York French America Charter School, Inc. in conformity with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

CSBM confirms that it is responsible for the fair presentation in the financial statements of financial 

position, changes in net assets, and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America, although as a consultant, CSBM is not responsible for the 

School’s establishing and maintaining internal control, and preventing and detecting fraud. 

CSBM, in the capacity of Consultant as indicated in the Professional Services Agreement with the 

School, confirms, to the best of its knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you 

during your audit. 

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformitywith accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

2. There are no material transactions that I am aware of that has not been properly recorded in 

the accounting records underlying the financial statements. 

3. CSBM is unaware of any adjustments required that are material, both individually and in the 

aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

4. CSBM has no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the New York French 

American Charter School involving: 

a) Management 

b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

5. CSBM is unaware of any plans or intentions that management has that may materially affect 

the carrying value or classification of assets, liabilities, or net asset balances. 

Charter School Business Management Inc. 
237 West 35th Street, Suite 301 New York, NY 10001 

888.710.2726 | csbm.com 



 

    
          

     

 

               

    

 

         

        

 

 

          

 
   

 

       

 

         

       

 

         

        

   

 

               

         

              

             

           

  

 

            

          

             

        

     

 

              

           

 

             

          

     

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2

6. CSBM is unaware of any of the following matters and have not recorded any of these matters 

in the financial statements: 

a) Related party transactions, including revenues, expenses, loans, transfers, leasing 

arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related 

parties. 

b) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the School is contingently liable. 

c) Unasserted claims or assessments. 

d) Agreements to repurchase assets previously sold. 

e) Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or 

disclosed by FASB Accounting Standards Codification 450, Contingencies. 

f) Designations of net assets disclosed to you that were not properly authorized and 

approved, or reclassifications of net assets that have not been properly reflected in 

the financial statements. 

7. There are no estimates that may be subject to a material change in the near term that have 

not been properly disclosed in the financial statements. CSBM understands that near term 

means the period within one year of the date of the financial statements. In addition, CSBM 

has no knowledge of concentrations existing at the date of the financial statements that make 

the organization vulnerable to the risk of severe impact that should be disclosed in the 

financial statements. 

8. CSBM has identified all accounting estimates that could be material to the financial 

statements, including the key factors and significant assumption underlying those estimates, 

and we believe the estimates are reasonable in the circumstances. This includes estimates 

for the statement of functional expenses, although it was management that made the 

decisions regarding allocation rates and methods. 

9. CSBM has included in the financial statements, all assets and liabilities that I was aware of 

that is under the control of the New York French American Charter School. 

10. CSBM is not aware of any events that have occurred subsequent to the statement of financial 

position date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to, or 

disclosure in, the financial statements. 

Charter School Business Management Inc. 
237 West 35th Street, Suite 301 New York, NY 10001 

888.710.2726 | csbm.com 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  

 
        

   
 

 
 

          
  

  
 

 
       

 
 

 
       

   
 

   
       

  
     

  
 

          
 

 
             

        
 

 
 

    
  

 
   

 
 

Observations and Recommendations 

To Management of
New York French American Charter School 

As a result of the audit for the year ended June 30, 2019, we want to provide you with an update on
comments made in the prior year. 

Documenting Student Residency
Charter Schools are required to maintain documentation for proof of residency for students. We
noted in the prior year audit that 5 out of 25 students selected lacked the documentation for proof of
residency. We recommended that the School implement a system that has someone other than the
person who maintains the student files review the student files to ensure that the proof of residency
is documented. 

Follow up for fiscal year 2019: We did not note a similar problem during the current year. Therefore, 
we consider this matter resolved. 

Debit Card Usage
The School holds a debit card that is used for purchases. These purchases bypass the standard
expense payment/approval process and the cash instantly gets debited from the checking account. 

While we did not come across situations with the lack of proper documentation, we recommend
substituting the debit card for a credit card as it provides a method to dispute an authorized charge
as the cash is not automatically withdrawn from the School’s bank account. Furthermore, we
recommend the School require prior approval for a predetermined threshold for purchases with the
credit card. An emphasis should be put on having cardholders include all original receipt or other
documentation to support the business nature of the expense and this documentation should be kept
in one central location. Payments on credit cards should not be made without proper documentation
to avoid paying for items that do not have a necessary and reasonable business purpose. 

Follow up for fiscal year 2019: This matter still existed and we repeat our recommendation. However, 
we were informed that the School will replace the debit card with a credit card beginning in FY20. 
Therefore, we will revisit this comment during next year’s audit.  

Operating Reserve Policy
During our prior audit we recommended that the school create a viable operating reserve with a
board approved policy in compliance with NYSDOE guidance. 

Follow up for fiscal year 2019: This matter still existed and we repeat our recommendation. 



 
 

 
 

     
 

  
 

  
 

   
              

   
   

 
 

  
  

    
 

 
             

        
    

        
 

          
           

         
        

 
 

    
 
 
 
 

 
        

 

Compensation of Management
In the prior year, we informed you that Form 990 contains a question about whether there is a formal
process in place to determine compensation of the CEO, executive director, top management official
and key employees. The question asks whether there is a review and approval by independent
persons, based on comparability data, with the decision and basis for conclusion contemporaneously
documented. The process needs to be described in an attached schedule. 

Additionally, we noted in the prior year that although the board reviewed management
compensation in executive sessions, we did not see a discussion and deliberation of this documented
in the minutes. We recommended that the board document the deliberations about the decision 
making process and the type of comparable data used, which should be done contemporaneously
(within 60 days of the decision or before the next board meeting). 

Follow up for fiscal year 2019: During the audit we noted the compensation of the principal was 
documented in the minutes. However, a comparability analysis was not performed to determine if his 
compensation was fair and in line with the market. Therefore, we continue this recommendation. 

Disaster Recovery Policy
All organizations should have plans to reduce the risk that data gets lost due to a fire, flood, terrorist
attack or other natural disaster. This includes hard copy records as well as the backup of computer files.
We recommend that a comprehensive plan be created that includes not only the backup of computer
files, but a testing of the restoring of computer files. 

In addition, because in today’s environment many documents are stored via electronic means 
(computers, hard drives and other electronic media), software upgrades are often made that make it
impossible to read files that have been created on older versions of the software. As part of a disaster
recovery plan, the School should ensure that they can read all older, stored files. 

Follow up for fiscal year 2019: During the current year audit. we noted that the School has an informal 
disaster recovery policy in place. Therefore, we recommend formalizing this policy in writing. 

Schall & Ashenfarb 
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 28, 2019 
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E STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT 

NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL Page: 1 of 2 
311 W 120TH ST Statement Period: Sep 01 2019-Sep 30 2019 
NEW YORK NY 10027-6192 Cust Ref #:  

Primary Account #:  

TD now accepts Real Time Payments! 
We're pleased to announce that TD will soon accept Real Time Payments (RTPs), which means you can receive certain 
electronic payments sent through RTP almost immediately. This is good news for consumers, businesses, and government 
agencies who use RTPs. As a TD Customer, you are automatically enrolled. Please be advised that you may not send or receive 
RTPs on behalf of a person who is not a resident of, or otherwise residing in, the United States. Please visit tdbank.com/RTP to 
learn more. 

Business Convenience Checking 
NEW YORK FRENCH AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL Account #  

ACCOUNT SUMMARY 
Beginning Balance 

Ending Balance 

70,003.96 

70,003.96 

Average Collected Balance 
Interest Earned This Period 
Interest Paid Year-to-Date 
Annual Percentage Yield Earned 
Days in Period 

70,003.96 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00% 
30 

DAILY ACCOUNT ACTIVITY 
No Transactions this Statement Period 

Call 1-800-937-2000 for 24-hour Bank-by-Phone services or connect to www.tdbank.com 
Bank Deposits FDIC Insured  TD Bank, N.A.  Equal Housing Lender 





	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information 
Last updated: 10/31/2019 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information 

requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined 

file. 

NEW YORK FRENCH-AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact 
Name Email Phone 

Nancy Sako 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm 

Schalll & Ashenfarb 4

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced 

financial services firm. 

Firm Name Contact 
Person 

Donna CSBM Webster 

Mailing
Address 

Email Phone Years with 
Firm 

7 

1 / 1 



     

           

    
    

    

    

    

   
        

  

    
    

             
 

            
          

  

          
            

           
            

New Yo k State Education Depa tment 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

 oard of Regents 

2019-20  udget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application  udgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
Ente  info mation into the GRAY cells 

Cells containing RED t iangles in the uppe   ight co ne  in columns B th ough G contain guidance on 
that pa ticula  item 

School dist ict pe -pupil tuition info mation is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/cha te /. Rows may be inse ted in the wo ksheet to accomodate 
additional dist icts if necessa y. 

The Assumptions column should be completed fo  all  evenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanato y. Whe e applicable, please  efe ence the page numbe  o  section in the application 
na  ative that indicates the assumption being made. Fo  instance, student en ollment would 
 efe ence the applicable page numbe  in Section I, C of the application na  ative. 



     
    

              

                        

                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                               
                                                                                                

      

      

   

  

                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                              

   

                                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                            

   

                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                            

         

      

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                             

  

                                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                                                              

    

  
 

  
 

   
 

   

 

      

New York French American Charter School 
PROJECTED  UDGET FOR 2019-2020 Assumptions 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 4,686,240 822,902 - 82,693 465,235 6,057,070 
Total Expenses 4,455,050 827,373 - 45,397 362,027 5,689,847 

Net Income 231,189 (4,471) - 37,296 103,208 367,223 
Actual Student Enrollment - - -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Pe  Pupil Revenue 

District of Location $16,150 00 4,135,424 781,875 - 51,693 465,235 5,434,227 90% P og am, 9% MGT, 1% Fund aising 

School Dist ict 2 (Ente  Name) - - - - - -

School Dist ict 3 (Ente  Name) - - - - - -

School Dist ict 4 (Ente  Name) - - - - - -

School Dist ict 5 (Ente  Name) - - - - - -

4,135,424 781,875 51,693 465,235 5,434,227 

Special Education Revenue - - - - - -

G ants 

Stimulus - - - - - -

Othe  - - - - - -

Othe  State Revenue 141,299 10,635 - - - 151,934 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 4,276,723 792,510 51,693 465,235 5,586,161 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs - 16,337 - - - 16,337 Di ect Allocation 

Title I 123,770 9,316 - - - 133,086 Title I; Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Title Funding - Othe  25,240 1,900 - - - 27,140 Title II; Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

School Food Se vice (F ee Lunch) - - - - - -

G ants 

Cha te  School P og am (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - - -

Othe  - - - - - -

Othe  Fede al Revenue - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 149,010 27,553 176,563 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Cont ibutions and Donations, Fund aising - - - - - -

E ate Reimbu sement 37,721 2,839 - - - 40,560 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Inte est Income, Ea nings on Investments, - - - - - -

NYC-DYCD (Depa tment of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - -

Food Se vice (Income f om meals) - - - - - -

Text Book - - - - - -

Othe  Local Revenue 222,786 - - 31,000 - 253,786 NYCDOE P eK Funding & Fund aising Revenue (Di ect Allocation) 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 260,507 2,839 31,000 294,346 

TOTAL REVENUE 4,686,240 822,902 82,693 465,235 6,057,070 

List e act titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management - - - - - - -

Inst uctional Management 1.00 105,692 26,423 - 1,762 42,277 176,154 P incipal (FTE 1.00): 75% P og am, 24% MGT, 1% Fund aising 

Deans, Di ecto s & Coo dinato s 1.00 64,809 8,101 - - 8,101 81,011 Pa ent Coo dinato  (FTE 1.00); 90% P og am, 10% MGT 

CFO / Di ecto  of Finance - - - - - - -

Ope ation / Business Manage  1.00 4,533 4,533 - 9,066 72,530 90,662 Finance/Business Manage  (FTE 1.00): 90& MGMT, 5 % Fund aising & P og am 

Administ ative Staff 4.00 187,964 20,885 - - - 208,849 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 7 362,998 59,942 10,828 122,908 556,676 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teache s - Regula  16.00 1,196,981 90,095 - - - 1,287,076 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Teache s - SPED 3.00 - 258,480 - - - 258,480 Di ect Allocation 

Substitute Teache s - - - - - - -

Teaching Assistants 3.00 129,288 9,731 - - - 139,019 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Specialty Teache s 10.00 621,090 46,749 - - - 667,839 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CY Pe  Pupil Rate 

       
Allocation Tab 

; p  g  / 
Assistant (FTE 1.00): 90% P og am, 10% MGT 



     
    

              

                        

                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                               
                                                                                                

      

      

    

  
 

  
 

   
 

                                                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                        

  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                    

   

                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                             

 

                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                           

 

                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                        

New York French American Charter School 
PROJECTED  UDGET FOR 2019-2020 Assumptions 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 4,686,240 822,902 - 82,693 465,235 6,057,070 
Total Expenses 4,455,050 827,373 - 45,397 362,027 5,689,847 

Net Income 231,189 (4,471) - 37,296 103,208 367,223 
Actual Student Enrollment - - -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Aides 5.00 53,965 4,062 - - - 58,027 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

The apists & Counselo s - - - - - - -

Othe  - 70,884 5,335 - - - 76,219 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 37 2,072,207 414,453 2,486,660 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nu se - - - - - - -

Lib a ian - - - - - - -

Custodian - - - - - - -

Secu ity - - - - - - -

Othe  - - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SU TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 44 2,435,206 474,395 10,828 122,908 3,043,336 

PAYROLL TAXES AND  ENEFITS 

Pay oll Taxes 172,283 37,250 - 2,328 20,953 232,815 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

F inge / Employee Benefits 365,097 78,940 - 4,934 44,404 493,374 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Reti ement / Pension 44,400 9,600 - 600 5,400 60,000 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND  ENEFITS 581,780 125,790 7,862 70,757 786,189 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 3,016,986 600,185 18,690 193,665 3,829,525 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit 1,500 1,500 - 27,000 30,000 CSBM & Audit Fees:90% MGMT, 10% P og am 

Legal 2,000 2,000 - - 36,000 40,000 Legal:90% MGMT, 10% P og am 

Management Company Fee - - - - - -

Nu se Se vices - - - - - -

Food Se vice / School Lunch - - - - - -

Pay oll Se vices 13,320 2,880 - 180 1,620 18,000 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Special Ed Se vices - - - - - -

Titlement Se vices (i.e. Title I) - - - - - -

Othe  Pu chased / P ofessional / Consulting 282,467 14,867 - - - 297,334 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 299,287 21,247 180 64,620 385,334 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Boa d Expenses - - - - - -

Class oom / Teaching Supplies & Mate ials 87,359 6,575 - - - 93,934 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Special Ed Supplies & Mate ials - - - - - -

Textbooks / Wo kbooks - - - - - -

Supplies & Mate ials othe  20,460 1,540 - - - 22,000 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Equipment / Fu nitu e - - - - - -

Telephone 4,512 340 - - - 4,852 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Technology 68,076 5,124 - - - 73,200 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Student Testing & Assessment - - - - - -

Field T ips 6,380 480 - - - 6,860 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

T anspo tation (student) - - - - - -

Student Se vices - othe  38,130 2,870 - - - 41,000 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Office Expense 15,910 3,440 - 215 1,935 21,500 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Staff Development 8,880 1,920 - 120 1,080 12,000 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Staff Rec uitment - - - - - -

Student Rec uitment / Ma keting 20,269 1,526 - - - 21,795 

School Meals / Lunch 2,468 186 - - - 2,654 

T avel (Staff) 2,790 210 - - - 3,000 

Fund aising - - - - - -

Othe  14,415 1,085 - 15,000 - 30,500 Powe School System; Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 289,649 25,296 15,335 3,015 333,295 



     
    

              

                        

                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                               
                                                                                                

      

      

    

  
 

  
 

   
 

   

                                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                   

        

                                  

                                   

                                   

                                   

                                   

                                                                                              

                                                                                               

                                                                                               

  
 

  
 

  
 

New York French American Charter School 
PROJECTED  UDGET FOR 2019-2020 Assumptions 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 4,686,240 822,902 - 82,693 465,235 6,057,070 
Total Expenses 4,455,050 827,373 - 45,397 362,027 5,689,847 

Net Income 231,189 (4,471) - 37,296 103,208 367,223 
Actual Student Enrollment - - -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insu ance 44,933 9,715 - 607 5,465 60,720 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Janito ial 90,650 19,600 - 1,225 11,025 122,500 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 439,904 95,114 - 5,945 53,502 594,465 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Repai s & Maintenance 20,925 1,575 - - - 22,500 Pupil Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

Equipment / Fu nitu e - - - - - -

Secu ity - - - - - -

Utilities 145,964 31,560 - 1,972 17,752 197,248 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 742,375 157,564 9,749 87,744 997,433 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 106,752 23,082 - 1,443 12,983 144,260 Pay oll Allocation, See Allocation Tab 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,455,050 827,373 45,397 362,027 5,689,847 

NET INCOME 231,189 (4,471) - 37,296 103,208 367,223 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

Dist ict of Location -

School Dist ict 2 (Ente  Name) -

School Dist ict 3 (Ente  Name) -

School Dist ict 4 (Ente  Name) -

School Dist ict 5 (Ente  Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL - - -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL - - -

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 



 
 
 

 

Pupil 297 23 

Fund aisin Management 
Allocations  
Pupil Allocation 93.00% 7.00% 
Pay oll Allocation 74.00% 16.00% 1.00% 9.00% 
Indi ect Allocation 

P og am 
Regula  
Ed 

P og am 
SPED 



























	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Trustee Position Committ Voting Number Start End Date 
Name on the ee Member of Terms Date of of 
and Board Affiliation Per By Served Current Current 
Email s Laws Term Term 
Address (Y/N) (

YYY) 
MM/DD/Y (MM/DD/Y

YYY) 

Richard 
Ortoli Chair Governan 

ce 
Yes 

09 12 
6/12/20 06/30/20

20 

Mason 
Mallory Vice 

Chair 
Finance 
& 
Facilities 

Yes 
08 13 
8/07/20 06/30/20

20 

Dionne 
Beckford 

Secretary 
Educatio 
n 

Yes 
05 14 
6/10/20 06/30/20

20 

Daniel Finance Vos Treasurer & 
Facilities 

Yes 
05 14 
6/10/20 06/30/20

20 

Zohair 
Ghenania Trustee/M

ember 
Finance 
& 
Facilities 

Yes 
02 17 
7/01/20 06/30/20

20 

Carine 
Pena Trustee/M

ember 
Governan 
ce 

Yes 
19 12 
2/18/20 06/30/20

19 

Brandi 
McLean 

Trustee/M Governan 07/01/20 06/30/20 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

10 

5 or less 

6 

9 

8 

5 or less 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

9 

7 ember 

8 

Charmine 
Luca Trustee/M

ember 

ce, PTO 

PTO 
President 

Yes 

Yes 

3 

1 

16 

07/01/20
18 

20 9 

06/30/20 720 

Jocelyn
Rettic Parent 07/01/20 06/30/20No 1 5 or less Rep 18 20 

1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

9 

1 

1 

15 

10 

10 
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Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

NEW YORK FRENCH-AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting No 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of 
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year. 

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119129657/wNFCVDEEJA/ 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 10/18/2019 • Last updated: 10/19/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

NEW YORK FRENCH-AMERICAN CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

English
Langua 
ge
Learner 
s/Multili
ngual
Learner 
s 

Student 
s with 
Disabilit 
ies 
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Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

English
Langua 
ge
Learner 
s/Multili
ngual
Learner 
s 

Student 
s with 
Disabilit 
ies 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 10/24/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

21 5 5 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

6 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

26 5 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

1 6 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Yes 

Thank you 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

11 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

12 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

12 

11 

0 

0 

1 
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